MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE COMMUNITY AND RECREATION COMMITTEE HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, 215 HIGH STREET, RANGIORA ON TUESDAY 23 JULY 2024 AT 3:30PM.

PRESENT

Councillors R Brine (Chairperson), A Blackie, B Cairns, N Mealings, and P Redmond.

IN ATTENDANCE

Councillors T Fulton and P Williams.

J Millward (Chief Execuive), C Brown (General Manager Community and Recreation), T Sturley (Community Team Manager), L Sole (District Libraries Manager), M Greenwood (Aquatics Manager), G Stephens (Design and Planning Team Leader), J Rae (Senior Advisor Community and Recreation, Assets and Capital), I Beal (Project Manager Community and Recreation), M Pugh (Community Development Facilitator), and C Fowler-Jenkins (Governance Support Officer).

There were four members of the public present.

1 APOLOGIES

Moved: Councillor Cairns Seconded: Councillor Blackie

THAT an apology for absence be received and sustained from Mayor Gordon.

CARRIED

2 <u>CONFLICTS OF INTEREST</u>

There were no conflicts declared.

3 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

3.1 <u>Minutes of the meeting of the Community and Recreation Committee held on 28 May</u> 2024

Moved: Councillor Redmond

Seconded: Councillor Cairns

THAT the Community and Recreation Committee:

(a) **Confirms** the circulated Minutes of the meeting of the Community and Recreation Committee, held on 28 May 2024 as a true and accurate record.

CARRIED

3.2 Matters arising (From Minutes)

There were no matters arising.

4 **DEPUTATIONS**

4.1 Age Friendly Advisory Group – Norman West

N West spoke to the Committee noting that in 2024 the Age Friendly Advisory Group were reporting to the Committee as per the commitment in their terms of reference. He acknowledged and thanked the Council for the support the Advisory Group had received from M Pugh who was a key staff contact person and facilitator for age friendly within the Waimakariri. He also acknowledged the contribution to the Advisory Group from Councillor Goldsworthy and Board Member Shona Powell. He acknowledged the members of the Advisory Group. In 2023 the Advisory Group reported to the Committee regarding its ongoing role in making the Waimakariri District a more age friendly district. At that meeting

they referenced a document developed by the World Health Organisation which identified eight key themes which would enable change to ensure more age friendly communities. Subsequently United Nations Educational Scientific and Cultural Organisation (UNESCO) developed a document which elaborated on these themes and developed a number of best practice actions as a guide to governing bodies. There were several attempts at developing a questionnaire for use in the community to assess the perceptions of age friendliness in the district. They then discovered similar work had been undertaken in The Hauge to develop a questionnaire to assess age friendliness. The Advisory Group trialled this version at the 2023 Older Persons Expo and based on this experience adapted the questionnaire to be used as a consultation tool. It was acknowledged that the questionnaire consultation had some limitations as the survey was relatively small, and the results were from people who were attending meetings or who were volunteers. Therefore, the results were very heavily weighted to the positive. However, the group were conscious that age friendly should apply to all older people in our community. Given the results of the questionnaire it was reasonable to conclude that the Waimakariri District was age friendly.

Councillor Redmond queried if the group were surveying people that were already engaged with them or if it was more random. N West noted that they had gone to people that were engaged with community groups. The survey was also available in the library and the group has also engaged people at campgrounds.

Councillor Williams asked how active the group were in going out to let other people know about the group's existence. J Mather noted that they had received a better result than they had in 2023 and was a much bigger sample.

Councillor Williams asked what age group was considered 'aged'. J Mather noted that when the questionnaire was installed at the library, they asked for people that were over 60.

Councillor Williams asked how they would raise the profile of the group. J Mather noted that they catered to a wide range of people that they represented so they went back to the constituent bodies and the occasional news release.

Councillor Cairns asked about question five of the questionnaire. He noted most events were advertised on social media and asked if they provided any solution to the older people getting access to more events. J Mather noted that the question had a fairly positive response. The questions where there was not such a positive response were questions nine and ten. This highlighted an area where they needed to do further work.

Councillor Brine asked about access to banking services. J Mather noted that it was a major problem which was persistently coming up. Grey Power advocated strongly in this area.

5 <u>REPORTS</u>

5.1 <u>Approval of Capital Work Renewals Programmes and Sports Ground Growth</u> <u>Programme for Greenspace – J Rae (Senior Advisor Community and Recreation,</u> <u>Assets and Capital)</u>

J Rae spoke to the report which sought approval for the proposed Greenspace Capital Works Renewal Programmes and the Sports Ground Growth Programmes. These programmes were proposed for years one and three and were indicative for the remaining seven years. She noted that staff would be reporting back to the Committee during the last quarter of the financial year to give an update on progress. The report recommended that the Committee recommended to the Council to bring forward the public toilet renewals budget scheduled in year three to year two. This report did not seek additional budget but rather the reallocation of the timing of general budgets already approved through the Long Term Plan process.

Councillor Williams sought clarification on the Kaiapoi NCF Park/Community Hub Playground for \$235,000 under playground safety/surface equipment renewals and below under non-specific reserve enhancement Kaiapoi NCF Park/Community Hub Playground for \$165,000 and asked what this was for. J Rae noted that the play safety surface budget was for the playground and the non-specified reserve enhancement was a betterment budget to supplement the playground budget. The total combined budget was \$400,000.

Councillor Blackie noted that this had resulted from the Long Term Plan. He asked if there was anything that did not interface with the Long term Plan. C Brown explained that this was based on current budgets, staff were not asking for any additional funding.

Councillor Mealings noted the amount in year five for the Sefton Domain of \$140,000. She asked if the \$180,000 proposed reflective in any of these budgets. J Rae noted that it was reflected in the community facilities budget.

Councillor Cairns noted that in the Long Term Plan had identified a BMX upgrade in either Rangiora or Kaiapoi. He asked if that had been included and if so, where was it shown. C Brown noted that it was included as the Rangiora BMX Track.

Councillor Redmond asked where the Kaiapoi Boat Club Reserve Carpark was as referred to on page 25 of the report. J Rae noted that there were three carparks similar in distance to each other and this was the front carpark closest to the water.

Councillor Redmond noted , the Woodend-Sefton Community Board had received a deputation regarding the Woodend Beach Domain toilets which were constantly being deferred. He asked for confirmation on when they would be scheduled. J Rae noted that the toilet upgrade was scheduled in year two which was 2025/26 and was indicative of the Council approving the budget being brought forward.

Councillor Mealings noted, the public toilet renewals on page 34 from Carlton Domain down showed no budgets. She asked if that was because they were recently done and did not require any work in the next ten years. J Rae noted that staff had looked at those locations and some were used for lease purposes and were under the lessee's requirement. Some were in good condition and had maintenance upgrades that would not require renewal in the first ten years.

Councillor Mealings noted that the Warren Community Reserve had been mentioned in the report. G Stephens noted that K Howat was leading on Warren Reserve project and would continue working with the Oxford-Ohoka Community Board.

T Fulton noted he had received a request from the Oxford Pony Club for a potable water supply for Carlton Domain.

Moved: Councillor Blackie Seconded: Councillor Cairns

THAT the Community and Recreation Committee:

- (a) **Receives** Report No. 240711113837.
- (b) Approves the attached (i) Greenspace Capital Works Renewal Programmes and Sports Ground Growth Programmes LTP 2024-34 for years one to three and indicative seven year programme (TRIM No. 240711113857).

| (c) Greenspace Capital Works Renewal Programmes and Sports Ground Growth Programme - Proposed Programme 2024/25- 2026/27 | | | | |
|---|---------------|-------|--------|--|
| Play Safety/Surface Equipment Renewals | | | | |
| | 24/25 | 25/26 | 26/27 | |
| Project Name | Year 1 Year 2 | | Year 3 | |

| | | | 1 | | | |
|---|----------|-----------------|--------|------------|----|------------|
| Kaiapoi NCF Park /Community Hub Playground | \$ | 235,000.00 | | | | |
| Currie Park/ Norman Kirk | \$ | 191,816.00 | | | | |
| Canterbury Street Reserve | \$ | 100,000.00 | | | | |
| Woodend Beach Domain | | | \$ | 136,136.00 | | |
| Allin Drive Reserve | | | | | \$ | 60,000.00 |
| Pegasus View Park | | | | | \$ | 100,069.00 |
| Νοι | n-Specif | ied Reserve En | hancen | nent | - | |
| Kaiapoi NCF Park /Community Hub Playground | \$ | 165,000.00 | | | | |
| Currie Park/ Norman Kirk | \$ | 108,184.00 | | | | |
| Canterbury Street Reserve | \$ | 100,000.00 | | | | |
| Woodend Beach Domain | | | \$ | 263,864.00 | | |
| Allin Drive Reserve | | | | | \$ | 90,000.00 |
| Pegasus View Park | | | | | \$ | 179,931.00 |
| Pines Beach Relocation | \$ | 35,000.00 | | | | |
| | Roads | & Carparks Re | newals | | - | |
| Baker Park - Footpath | \$ | 45,000.00 | | | | |
| Waikuku Beach - Central Area: Path | \$ | 5,000.00 | | | | |
| Woodend Beach Domain: Carpark Surface | \$ | 100,000.00 | | | | |
| Woodend Beach Domain: Carpark | \$ | 100,000.00 | | | | |
| Waikuku Beach - Central Area: Carpark | \$ | 240,000.00 | | | | |
| Ashgrove Park: Driveway Surface | \$ | 5,000.00 | | | | |
| Darnley Square- North: Carpark | \$ | 100,000.00 | | | | |
| Rangiora Airfield - Driveway | | | \$ | 255,000.00 | | |
| Kaiapoi Boat Club Reserve: Carpark | | | \$ | 100,000.00 | | |
| Kaiapoi Riverbank S-East Side: Path | | | | | \$ | 5,000.00 |
| Matawai Park: Path - Pedestrian Only | | | | | \$ | 2,500.00 |
| Mainpower Oval: Carpark Surface | | | | | \$ | 100,000.00 |
| Sefton Domain: Carpark Surface | | | | | \$ | 65,000.00 |
| Askeaton Park: Carpark Surface | | | | | \$ | 190,000.00 |
| | Hard | d Surface Rene | wals | | | |
| no programme of works within the first t | hree yea | irs | | | | |
| | Publ | ic Toilets Rene | wals | | | |
| Ashley Picnic Grounds- Cones Rd | \$ | 357,980.00 | \$ | - | \$ | - |
| Woodend Beach Domain | \$ | _ | \$ | 375,150.00 | \$ | _ |
| Future Sports Ground Development | | | | | | |
| Kaiapoi River Sport User Hub | \$ | 250,000.00 | | - | | - |
| | | | | | | |

| Coldstream Road Sporting Precinct | \$ 50,000.00 | - | - |
|--|------------------|---|------------------|
| Maria Andrews irrigation investigation and field upgrade | \$ 105,000.00 | - | - |
| Southbrook Park Field Upgrade | \$ 100,000.00 | - | \$ 160,000.00 |
| Gladstone Drainage | \$ 120,000.00 | - | - |
| A&P lighting Upgrade | \$ 120,000.00 | - | - |
| Kendall Park Drainage | - | - | \$ 273,000.00 |

- (d) **Notes** staff will report back to the Community and Recreation Committee during the last quarter of the financial year to update on the status of each project.
- (e) **Notes** staff will provide regular reports throughout the year to the Audit and Risk Committee as part of the standard capital project reporting system.
- (f) **Notes** that any programme changes will be reported to the Community and Recreation Committee. For example, this might be due to factors such as project engagement results, tender pricing, or breakages to other assets during this period.
- (g) **Notes** that by assigning the budgets as recommended, there is no provision made for reactive works. Greenspace does not have the budget required to react to new requests. Any such requests will result in a report back to the Community and Recreation Committee to consider changes to the programme and will impact other programmed works.
- (h) **Notes** that the General Reserves Landscape Budgets that are delegated to the local Community Boards are not considered within this work programme.
- (i) **Notes** that all renewal projects which are specifically listed in the Long Term Plan are not considered within this report, as these are consulted on through the Long Term Plan process.
- (j) **Notes** that growth budgets for land development and land purchase have not been included in this report due to the changing nature of how and when the budgets are needed. These budgets need to be flexible to react to growth and ongoing negotiations with developers.
- (k) **Circulates** this report to all Boards for their information.

AND

THAT the Community and Recreation Committee recommends:

THAT the Council:

- (I) **Receives** Report No. 240711113837.
- (m) **Recommends** that Council approve bringing forward the public toilet renewals budget scheduled for year three into year two.

CARRIED

Councillor Cairns commented that the Greenspace team would be busy over the next few years and congratulated staff on the report.

5.2 <u>Youth Development Update – T Sturley (Community Team Manager) and E Belton</u> (Youth Development Facilitator)

T Sturley spoke to the report which provided an overview of progress in youth development and delivery of the Youth Strategy 2018. She noted that the strategy was due for review particularly with the changing demographics in the district since the strategy had been implemented in 2018. She highlighted the results detailed in the report centred on best practice, youth development, participation. She also highlighted the success of the Youth Futures Programme and Mayors Taskforce for Jobs which both centred on youth education, employment and opportunity as well as the success of the Brad Olsen Seminar.

Councillor Cairns asked what it cost to run the programmes, where the funds come from. T Sturley replied that the general youth development role was rate funded. The projects, that were delivered were funded from a variety of funding streams. For example, there was collaborative funding for the Youth Futures project, most of which came from the Ministry of Social Development and Ministry of Education. There were a lot of high level stakeholders involved. Youth Town had funded a lot events and opportunities while, Rata, various gaming trusts had also provided funding assistance.

Councillor Cairns noted that Pegasus, Ravenswood and Waikuku areas were missing Skate Jam events. He asked if there were any plans to put youth events into those areas. T Sturley replied that, looking at the last iteration of the Youth Strategy, young people were asked what would make the biggest difference for them. Only 3% listed events. Most of the feedback related to facilities, sport, shops and access to transport. The overwhelming impression was a desire for a sense of belonging and having a youth friendly district where they could access services, sport and facilities were really important. Going forward when staff reviewed that strategy, they needed to look at what did work.

Councillor Mealings asked if district wide skate jams could be a possibility in the future. T Sturley noted that the Council had undertaken a number of skate jams in Rangiora, Kaiapoi and Oxford. They were an easy to run event and were very popular, therefore they would continue.

Councillor Redmond noted that the Mayor's Taskforce for Jobs was funded by the Ministry of Social Development and asked if the position was still being funded. T Sturley replied that the position was funded for two years.

Moved: Councillor Mealings Seconded: Councillor Cairns

THAT the Community and Recreation Committee:

- (a) **Receives** Report No. 240710113131.
- (b) **Notes** the breadth of work undertaken to engage, connect, inform and empower local young people so that they can be well supported and included in local activities and decision making.
- (c) **Notes** the success of the Youth Futures initiative and associated Mayor's Taskforce for Jobs programme in linking local young people into information, support and opportunities for training and employment, which would not have otherwise been available.
- (d) **Notes** the valuable role that Youth Council has played as a mechanism to capture the voice of young people in local decision making, so that our District's services, supports and recreational opportunities fit the needs of the next generation of local rate payers.

- (e) **Notes** that, despite the need to cancel many youth-led events over the COVID period, several thousand local young people were linked into at least one of an extensive range of local youth-led events and activities.
- (f) **Notes** the importance of the planning and delivery of youth-led activities being evidence-based and relevant, so that funding spend is appropriately targeted. This is in line with the national, Ministry of Health Best Practice Guidelines for Youth Development, as detailed in 4.2, below.
- (g) **Notes** the pending review of the existing Youth Strategy This process will begin in the second quarter of this financial year, with a new document, in the form of an action and implementation plan, produced in time for the 2025/2026 financial year.

CARRIED

Councillor Mealings thanked staff for the report. She commented having a front row seat to a lot of these initiatives and commended E Belton's work in the youth space. It was encouraging that there were so many engaged youth. She commented on the success of the Youth Futures Event and that the Mayor's Taskforce for Jobs had very positive outcomes.

Councillor Cairns concurred with Councillor Mealings. He looked forward to the upcoming review of the Youth Strategy. He commended the Community Team for its work.

5.3 <u>Airfield Operations Update – O Stewart (Airfield Manager and Safety Officer)</u>

G Stephens spoke to the report noting that O Stewart had been in the role for twelve months. O Stewart had spent time building his reputation and relationships at the Airfield with the users and the Advisory Group and helping to build a health and safety culture. He had also been looking at the wider picture to ensure that the Airfield was operating using best practices and operating efficiently.

In response to a question from Councillor Williams, C Brown noted that there was a planner's report prepared in response to a submission to the District Plan from Daniel Smith for a special zone for the airfield. This encompassed residential business and other areas within the airfield, including the Priors Road land area. If that project, for any reason did not go ahead, the Council would still be able to develop the land it owned on Priors Road. Currently Daniel Smith was working with his experts to provide comments in response to the planner's report.

Councillor Brine Seconded: Councillor Blackie

THAT the Community and Recreation Committee:

- (a) **Receives** Report No. 240710113130.
- (b) **Notes** staff will provide status report to the Community and Recreation Committee during the last quarter of the financial year.
- (c) **Notes** that any significant programme changes will be reported to the Community and Recreation Committee.
- (d) Notes that Council has responsibility to maintain a safe operating environment under Civil Aviation Authority Aerodrome Operating Rule 139.503 Unsafe Conditions.

CARRIED

5.4 <u>Aquatics July Report – M Greenwood (Aquatics Manager) and S Bergin (Dudley Park</u> <u>Centre Manager)</u>

M Greenwood took the report as read. He noted that the mobility chair had arrived and was installed. There was programme being worked through to train staff who also worked with caregivers and support workers who utilised the pool. Staff had completed the aquarobics customer satisfaction survey which had received an overall 97% satisfaction rate.

Councillor Cairns noted a spike in attendance figures in March 2022/23 and asked if there was any particular reason for that. M Greenwood replied that the figures included sales items and commented that there had been some good weather during that time, however, he was unsure of the exact reason for the spike in attendance.

Councillor Fulton asked if staff could revisit the pricing structure for the Oxford Pool. M Greenwood replied that staff had looked into this, however it was a fine balance. Running an outdoor pool had a lot more heating costs. It was finding a balance of ticket sales versus rates funding. There were a number of options including a seasonal pass.

Moved: Councillor Mealings Seconded: Councillor Cairns

THAT the Community and Recreation Committee:

- (a) **Receives** Report No. 240709112171.
- (b) **Notes** strong attendance at the Aquatic Facilities with 263,322 total visits for the 2023/24 year which is 6500 more than the previous year.
- (c) **Notes** delivery of a mobile hoist at Dudley enabling greater access to all pool.
- (d) **Notes** an overall customer satisfaction result of 97% for the Aquarobics programme in a recent customer satisfaction survey.
- (e) **Circulates** this report to the Community Boards for their information.

CARRIED

Councillor Mealings commented that in spite of the fact that they only needed 3% to get to 100% satisfaction staff had acknowledged that there was always room for improvement. It was heartening to see the numbers were rising. She was pleased that the hoist was now installed as a number of groups had been asking for it.

Councillor Cairns commented that the rationale for having the pools was to try and get people to become more comfortable with water. There were a huge number of drownings in New Zealand that should not be the case. The work that staff were doing was crucial to ensure that our young people were staying safe. He congratulated staff on the pool hoist.

Councillor Redmond noted that it was pleasing to see that the revenue was up, and the expenditure was down.

6 CORRESPONDENCE

Nil.

7 PORTFOLIO UPDATES

7.1 <u>Greenspace (Parks, Reserves and Sports Grounds) –</u> <u>Councillor Al Blackie.</u>

- The two observation platforms at Waikuku and Pegasus were now completed minus some planting. The Ocean Access Group were working with Greenspace staff to get the mats down from the platforms to the edge of the water.
- The Huria Mahinga Kai Reserve path was almost finished.
- Silverstream and Honda Forest planting days were well attended by the public.
- Te Kohaka Trust was going to the public for possible Trustees.
- Northern Pegasus Bay Bylaw Hearing and Deliberations were held on 18 and 19 July. It was disappointing that eight submitters did not attend the hearing. The main issues were dogs on the beach and planes over the estuary.

7.2 <u>Community Facilities (including Aquatic Centres, Multi-use Sports Stadium,</u> <u>Libraries/Service Centres, Town Halls and Museums) – Councillor Robbie Brine.</u>

- The Bowling Club were wanting to know what stage the Council was. There was a lot of work to go on. He and Board Member Steve Wilkinson attended a Southbrook Sports Club meeting where there was also a lot of discussion that still needed to be held.
- The requested architectural and engineering services proposal for the Pegasus Community Centre had been finalised and would go out to three selected companies.
- The new hoist at Dudley had been installed.

7.3 Community Development and Wellbeing – Councillor Brent Cairns.

- Write On and Waimakariri libraries had a special celebration at Kaiapoi library on Thursday 1 August at 5.30pm. Young writers from across the district held a masterclass creating poems, many based on artifacts displayed in the Kaiapoi museum.
- National Poetry Day would be celebrated on Friday 23 August at 5.30pm to 7.30pm at Rangiora library. This event would launch Fuego volume 2.
- Viewing platforms had been installed at both Pegasus and Waikuku beaches, with the latter to have a mat (about 30 metres long) which could be rolled out giving those with mobility issues greater access to the beach.
- Community Wellbeing had an increase of 50 food parcels handed out in July, compared to previous month but overall, a decrease in the number being handed out due to additional services being provided. The second visit to the food bank with 30 days triggered a meetings with the manager, budget advice and could involve health providers.
- Big Brothers Big Sisters were putting on "The Big Variety Show" in Rangiora on the 28 September. They were looking for people with unique talents to apply via the charity's website.
- Signage had been printed and ready to be installed on cycleways (should be installed in the next couple of months). This would be especially important as there were a number of people getting lost on the trails due to the lack of signs directing people where to go.
- Researched different housing models and found Queenstown Lakes Community Housing Trust – www.qlcht.org.nz – which allowed a family to have a 100 year lease. They had 300 homes and 1,300 people on the waiting list. He liked its simple easy to read policies, which unlock homes for the community. The Trust took advantage of the Government's Progressive Home Ownership fund and received \$22million interest free over 15 years to help locals into assisted ownership across three separate developments.

- At a recent Waimakariri Access Group meeting raised an issue in High Street in Rangiora with the Liquid Amber street trees which dropped its seed pods all over the footpath and road which had caused a wheelchair member to topple out of his chair. The staff had been working hard to establish the best way forward.
- Thank you to M Greenwood and his aquatic team in getting the access chair sorted and in place at Dudley pool.
- This terms free English classes started on the 27 July at the Rangiora Town Hall function room from 10am till 1pm.
- In June Food Secure North Canterbury held a successful gathering of interested groups (46 people attended). Good speakers and the chance to network had meant these quarterly meetings were proving worthwhile i.e. The Woodend Lions had offered land to provide vegetables to local food banks.
- This week Lotteries funding closed, so a number of groups had been working hard on getting applications in. Funding of projects and events had become very hard. At the recent funding workshop, Rata Foundation said they were becoming more targeted in where they were allocating money. With the Government pulling back on giving funds it left a large hole to fill and some would struggle. Rata made it clear that they were not there to fill the gap where the Government had turned its back on groups and projects.
- One business he spoke to had, prior to the election, had a year's work ahead of education department contracts, after the election those contracts were cut in half.
- Had reports of Christchurch Hospital discharging patients at 2am in the morning. Rangiora residents would receive a free taxi chit, Kaiapoi residents do not.
- Grandparents Raising Grandchildren Support Group gathering at 9.30am to 11am at 200 King Street on 27 July and 24 August.
- Inclusive sports day would be held again at Mainpower stadium on the 29 September 10.30am to 2.30pm.
- The Kaiapoi Food Forest had a vacancy for a coordinator if anyone knows someone that was keen on paid work for 10 hours a week. They had visits from an International Business where staff donated time and the business paid for almost \$1,000 of trees and plants. Another international group had approached the food forest, based on the values that were similar to its own and in September would provide a large donation of trees. They ran a successful pruning workshop this past weekend, with more workshops planned over the coming months. They had a visit from two philanthropists with the view of funding the educational building.
- The Rangiora Museum run monthly talks which were always interesting. The next is at 7.30pm this 25 July at the museum on Good Street.
- Pegasus Residents Group had their Annual General Meeting on 24 July at 7pm at the school hall.
- Abbeyfield Waimakariri Inc. (AWI) extended an invitation to attend the 3rd Annual General Meeting to be held on Thursday, 25 July 2024 at the Rangiora Bridge Club Rooms, 31 Good Street, Rangiora commencing at 7 p.m.

7.4 <u>Waimakariri Arts and Culture – Councillor Al Blackie.</u>

- Kaiapoi Art Expo was very successful, there was around 8,000 people that attended. Sales were slightly down which was a measure of the economic climate. Overall, in conjunction with Blackwells Fire and Ice it was a successful event.
- As part of the Arts Strategy, it allowed for a 20 hours a week half time facilitator. Council had made an offer.

8 MATTER REFERRED FROM THE WOODEND-SEFTON COMMUNITY BOARD

8.1 Sefton Domain and Pavilion – I Clark (Project Manager Community and Recreation)

I Clark spoke to the report which provided an update on the Sefton Public Hall Society's progress relating to the rebuild of the Sefton Hall facility. The report also sought approval to replace the full wastewater system at Sefton Domain, using the general renewals building budget. The replacement allowed not only for the repair but also for futureproofing when the new facility would be built. Staff needed to go through a procurement process to confirm the exact cost.

Councillor Williams asked about timing and had brought the issue up after ANZAC Day. There was a portaloo there currently, however this would be a public hall. I Clark replied that prior to ANZAC Day, the Council had been notified of the wastewater fail. Staff then undertook an assessment which had taken some time. Greenspace staff had then gone to the Councils Water Unit to assess the report. It was unfortunate that it had taken so long.

Councillor Williams asked how long it would take for the system to be replaced. I Clark replied that staff needed to go through a design phase prior to going to tender. She hoped it would be finished this year.

Councillor Fulton asked about the provision for the Sefton Public Hall. He noted under risk management there was provision that the lease was for 11 years on the new site allowing sufficient time for fundraising the structure of the new facility. He asked what fallback there was if funds could not be raised. C Brown noted that they would be selling the land the current hall was on and the Sefton Library and using that money as well as extra fundraising. The Council had allocated \$200,000 in the Long Term Plan towards the building costs. Once they had done that, they were still far away from being able to build. He noted that this was a problem for Sefton however there were a number of other communities that owned their own facilities which needed to be upgraded.

Moved: Councillor Redmond

Seconded: Councillor Blackie

THAT the Community and Recreation Committee:

- (a) **Approves** option one for staff to replace the wastewater system at Sefton Domain.
- (b) **Approves** staff utilising up to \$180,000 from the General Building Renewals budget (PJ code 101179.000.5014) for the replacement of the septic system within the 2024/25 financial year.
- (c) **Notes** that the General Building Renewals programme will have an impact due to the use of allocation of this budget.
- (d) **Notes** the Community Facilities Network plan supports the Sefton Public Hall Society replacing the facility it owns that was damaged in the earthquake and requires renewal.
- (e) **Notes** that staff will be bringing a programme for Greenspace budgets to the Community and Recreation Committee in its July meeting. This report will propose the Greenspace program of works for the next three years, including the General Building Renewals Budget.

CARRIED

Councillor Redmond supported the motion. He noted that the matter had been to the Woodend-Sefton Community Board. There was a problem at the domain that need to be

repaired and related to the hall which would be located in the domain. This was futureproofing as a septic tank would be required in the future.

9 QUESTIONS

Nil.

10 URGENT GENERAL BUSINESS

Nil.

11 MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC EXCLUDED

In accordance with section 48(1) of the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 and the particular interest or interests protected by section 6 or section 7 of that Act (or sections 6, 7 or 9 of the Official Information Act 1982, as the case may be), it is moved:

Moved: Councillor Brine Seconded: Councillor Blackie

1. That the public be excluded from the following parts of the proceedings of this meeting:

Item 11.1 Pines Beach Playground Relocation – Budget Reallocation

CARRIED

The general subject of the matters to be considered while the public are excluded, the reason for passing this resolution in relation to the matter, and the specific grounds under section 48(1) of the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 for the passing of this resolution are as follows:

| Meeting Item No. and subject | Reason for excluding the public | Grounds for excluding the public . |
|---|---|---|
| 11.1 Pines Beach Playground Relocation – Budget Reallocation | Good reason to withhold exists under section 7 | Section 7(h) of the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act; "enable any local authority holding the information to carry out, without prejudice or disadvantage, commercial activities". |

CLOSED MEETING

See Public Excluded Agenda (separate document)

The meeting adjourned at 5:05pm and reconvened in public excluded 5:09pm.

CLOSED MEETING

Resolution to Resume in open meeting

Moved: Councillor Brine Seconded: Councillor Redmond

THAT open meeting resumes and the business discussed with the public excluded remains public excluded.

CARRIED

OPEN MEETING

NEXT MEETING

The next meeting of the Community and Recreation Committee will be held on Tuesday 17 September 2024 at 3.30pm.

Workshop (5:09pm to 5:34pm)

Trevor Inch Memorial Library Shelving Replacement and Revised Layout Plan
– Luke Sole (District Libraries Manager)

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS THE MEETING CLOSED AT 5:34PM.

CONFIRMED

Councillor R Brine (Chairperson)

17 September 2024

Date